
 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 
 

Staffing Matters & Urgency Committee 
 
To: Councillors   Alexander (Chair), Gunnell, Fraser, 

Runciman and Gillies 
 

Date: Tuesday, 30 August 2011 
 

Time: 1.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting 
during consideration of the following: 
  
Annexes to Agenda Item 5 (Land Purchase at Holgate Park) and 
Agenda Item 6 (Redundancy) on the grounds that they contain 
information relating to individuals and the financial affairs of 
particular persons. This information is classed as exempt under 
paragraphs 1,2 and 3  of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Staffing 
Matters & Urgency Committee held on 15 August 2011. 
 

4. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so.  The deadline for 
registering is on Friday 26 August at 5.00 pm. 
 



 
5. Land Purchase at Holgate Park  (Pages 7 - 22) 

 

This report asks Members to approve a strategic purchase of land 
at Holgate Park to assist with bringing forward developments on the 
York Central site and within the York Northwest corridor.  
 

6. Redundancy  (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

This report advises the Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee of 
the expenditure associated with the proposed dismissal of a 
number of employees on the grounds of redundancy. 
 

7. Any Other Matters which the Chair decides are urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Judith Cumming 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 551078 
• E-mail – judith.cumming@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business from a published Cabinet (or CMDS (Cabinet Member 
Decision Session)) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called 
in’ business on the published date and will set out its views for 
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the 
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will 
be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING STAFFING MATTERS & URGENCY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE 15 AUGUST 2011 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS ALEXANDER (CHAIR), 
GUNNELL, FRASER AND RUNCIMAN 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR GILLIES 
 
 

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any 
personal or prejudicial interests they might have in the business 
on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Alexander declared a personal interest in agenda 
item 5 as a member of GMB. 
 
Councillor Fraser also declared a personal interest in agenda 
item 5 (Redundancy) as a member of the retired sections of 
UNISON and Unite (TGWU/ACTS sections). 
 
Councillor Gunnell declared a personal interest in the same item 
as a family member worked in the same service as the business 
cases outlined at Annex C. 
 
No other interests were declared.  
 
 

28. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from 

the meeting during the consideration of the 
annexes to agenda item 5 (Redundancy) on 
the grounds that they contain information 
relating to individuals and the financial affairs 
of particular persons, which is classified as 
exempt under Paragraphs 1,2 and 3 of 
Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as revised by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation 
Order 2006). 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



 
 

29. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Staffing Matters and 

Urgency Committee held on 18 July 2011 be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct 
record. 

 
 

30. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

31. REDUNDANCY  
 
Members considered a report which informed them of the 
expenditure associated with the proposed dismissal of a number 
of employees on the grounds of redundancy. 
 
Details of the twenty six individual employees concerned were 
contained in business cases which were circulated at the 
meeting as exempt annexes A-E. All of the proposed 
redundancies were voluntary. 
 
Discussion between Members focused on the use of agency 
workers when staff leave the service, and the tendering out of 
services. Members requested further information on this matter.  
 
Members suggested that letters of thanks be sent out to those 
employees who had contributed a significant number of years of 
service to the Council.  
 
RESOLVED:  (i) That the requested information on the use of 

agency staff and tendering out of services be 
circulated to Members. 

 
                    (ii) That the expenditure associated with the 

proposed dismissal of the employees on the 
grounds of redundancy, as detailed in 
Annexes A-E circulated at the meeting be 
noted. 

 

Page 4



REASON: So that Members have an overview of the 
expenditure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr J Alexander, Chair 
[The meeting started at 1.00 pm and finished at 1.15 pm]. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

   

 
Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee 30th August 2011 
 
REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE 
SERVICES 
 
Land Purchase at Holgate Park 

Summary 

1. There is an opportunity for the Council to make a strategic purchase 
of land to assist with bringing forward developments on the York 
Central site and within the York Northwest corridor. The land is 
currently owned by Yorkshire Forward and alternative arrangements 
regarding their land ownership need to be in place prior to the end 
of this Regional Development Agency in March 2012.  

2. The York Central site is of major strategic significance to the future 
prosperity of the City. The site will accommodate half of York’s long 
term office growth, as well as over 1,000 new homes, and a 
significant leisure and retail offer, as part of a mixed-use urban 
extension. 

3.   The land that the Council may purchase is immediately adjacent to 
the York Central site, and provides an opportunity to unlock 
development of the site through forming a principal vehicular 
access, which would be essential to both the construction and 
occupation of the development. The land may also have intrinsic 
development potential, as well as allowing more intensive use of the 
adjacent carriageworks rail employment site.  

4 Because of the strategic importance of York Central, it is 
recommended that the Council acquires this land.  This will assist in 
bringing forward job-generating developments and simplify land 
ownership arrangements regarding the York Central site.  

 Background 

5. The land owned by Yorkshire Forward is shown on the attached 
plan.  It consists of what is generally known as the “5 acre site” (Site 
A) at Holgate Park, together with a disused canteen block and 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



 

associated landscaping (Site B). This site was acquired by 
Yorkshire Forward as a strategic land purchase to enable to support 
the development of York Central because of both its local and 
regional significance. Following the decision taken by the 
Government to abolish Regional Development Agencies, alternative 
arrangements are being put in place for the transfer of assets.  It is 
intended that the remaining assets owned by Yorkshire Forward will 
transfer to the Homes and Communities Agency on 19th September.  
Informal discussions have been held between officers of the Council 
and Yorkshire Forward to explore the acquisition of this site prior to 
this transfer.   

6. The principal benefit of this would be to enable the Council to have 
a land ownership stake in the future development of York Central, 
and the wider York Northwest corridor. This will allow greater 
influence in the development, to the benefit of the city. It will also 
build the case for the Council to implement innovative public finance 
approaches to enable development, such as Tax Increment Finance 
(TIF) or Asset Backed Vehicles (ABV). The acquisition would also 
maintain a public sector stake in the York Central development and 
simplify land ownership arrangements. This would reduce the 
likelihood of commercially orientated third parties prejudicing or 
complicating the wider development through introducing uncertainty, 
conflicting aspirations, artificially inflated land values, land assembly 
issues or ‘ransom strip’ situations.   

7. Members will be aware of the strategic significance of the York 
Central site in terms of its potential contribution to the future 
economic prosperity of the City.  This is clearly identified in the 
Local Development Framework draft core strategy, which 
establishes that the site will accommodate around half of the cities 
long term office growth, forming a new business district to meet 
modern business needs and drive growth in the City. The site is 
also identified as meeting a significant proportion of the City’s 
housing growth and accommodating a range of retail and leisure 
uses. A planned approach to the development of York Central, in 
association with the British Sugar site through the York Northwest 
corridor, is envisaged to ensure that these sites are considered in a 
strategic and comprehensive manner, whilst promoting local 
distinctiveness.  Acquisition of this site will enable the Council to 
play a positive role through its economic development and asset 
management functions in achieving objectives set out in the 
corporate plan as well as the Sustainable Community Strategy. 

Page 8



 

8. In addition to providing access to York Central, the site is located 
immediately adjacent to York Business Park and residual site areas 
could have commercial development value in their own right. The 
land is also adjacent to the Carriageworks building, which is owned 
by Network Rail, who have aspirations to make more intensive use 
of this important rail employment asset, facilitated by improved rail 
access over the 5 acre site.    

9. The site to be purchased is detailed on the plan at Annex A and 
comprises 2 areas 

• Site A – net area is 1.8 hectares (4.4 acres).  The site is cleared 
and is flat and ready for development.  It should be noted that; 

o The site is contaminated (including blue, white and brown 
asbestos, sulphate, arsenic and mercury) and has been 
capped with 150mm of hardcore and 600mm clay.  A report 
has been commissioned on the condition of this cap and the 
acquisition price will be altered to reflect the condition of this 
cap 

o The culverted Holgate Beck also flows under the site.  As 
this will have some affect on the proportion of the site that 
could be developed (depending on the proposed uses) the 
acquisition price has been revised to reflect this. 

• Site B – net area is 0.5 hectares (1.2.acres).  This site comprises 
the area behind the Fox Inn which is grassed and has a cycle and 
footpath running over it and also the former Works canteen block.  
No information has been provided concerning the construction or 
condition of this building.  It is therefore assumed to be in a very 
poor condition and, following acquisition, a report will be brought 
recommending demolition of the building. 

10. Negotiations have taken place with Yorkshire Forward to acquire 
the freehold of the whole site and provisional terms have been 
agreed, subject to; 

• Report on legal title (initial findings show that there are no 
significant concerns) 

• Report on the condition of the cap (see paragraph 4 above) 

• Contract 

Page 9



 

The details of the terms are contained in confidential Annex 2.  It 
is the Corporate Landlord’s opinion that the proposed acquisition 
price equals the market value for the site and this is confirmed by 
the report obtained form an independent valuer (a summary of this 
is detailed in confidential Annex B).  It is also the view of the 
Corporate Landlord that site A would be of interest to a number of 
developers and occupiers as an employment site. 

11. Timescales for disposal of the site will relate to the development 
approach taken as well as commercial considerations. This may be 
dependent on a range of factors, including securing of planning 
consent for York Central (unlikely before 2013), the lifetime of any 
York Central finance vehicle such as TIF or ABV, the commercial 
development of the sites themselves, or anticipated improvements 
to the carriageworks site (from 2015). It is considered unlikely that 
the sites would be wholly disposed of before 2016. 

 Consultation  

12. Internal consultation has taken place with officers within the council.  
In addition, Network Rail, one of the key land stakeholders in the 
York Central site, has been made aware of the Council’s interest in 
land purchase and are supportive of this.  

Analysis/Options 
 
13. There is an opportunity to acquire this site from Yorkshire Forward 

prior to its transfer to the Homes and Communities Agency.  The 
report above outlines the strategic significance of this site to the 
future economic prosperity of the city and the reasoning behind the 
Council seeking to acquire it. 

14. The alternative option is to not acquire the site at the present time 
which would enable the transfer to the Homes and Communities 
Agency to go ahead.  This option is not recommended because:- 

a) It would introduce a new landowner to the consortium of 
stakeholders seeking to bring forward the York Central site 
which could possibly result in fragmentation. 

b) It would not enable the Council to use its economic 
development and asset management service to play a 
significant role in achieving development and jobs on this major 
site. 

Page 10



 

Corporate Objectives 

15. The proposal would contribute significantly to the Jobs and 
Economic Growth objective by supporting the development of a 
key employment site in the City.  

 Implications 

16. Financial - the land at Holgate Park will be included in the capital 
programme as an additional scheme in 2011/12 and will be funded 
from an increase in borrowing.  The resultant finance costs will be 
funded from the treasury management budget with a permanent 
increase in 2012/13 until the asset is sold.  Any sales proceeds of 
the land will be used to repay the debt first.  The finance costs will 
be approximately £110k to £135k depending on the purchase cost 
of the land. 

17 The cost of the demolition of the building is approximately £50k. 
This will also be an addition to the capital programme, being funded 
from borrowing with a permanent increase in the treasury 
management budget in 2012/13 of approximately £4.5k.   

18 Further revenue implications in relation to the costs to maintain the 
site are £5k. This will be funded from the Commercial Portfolio 
Budget. 

19. Property – as detailed in this report the Corporate Landlord’s view 
is that acquiring this site will result in a number of strategic 
opportunities for the Council in engaging with other stakeholders in 
the area for the bringing forward of the development of York 
Central.  Site A could be developed with or without the development 
of York Central as an employment site. The acquisition price 
represents market value and the Council should be able to sell 
either or both sites for at least the figure paid for acquisition. 

20. Legal - The Council has the power, under section 120 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to acquire land for the benefit, improvement, 
or development of the area. Subject to a formal report on title and 
formal conveyancing process the land may be acquired on this 
basis. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

21. Equalities and Human Resources- 

 There are no implications  

 Risk Management 

22. The main risks are:- 

a) Financial – Unable to recover the cost of acquiring the site on 
its subsequent disposal.  It is considered that the price being 
paid is the market value but the market could drop in the future 
or unforeseen costs could be incurred in maintaining the site 
until disposal.  These can be managed by demolishing the one 
building on the site (which will need to be separately funded), 
carrying out a survey on the cap which has been placed on it 
and carrying out regular inspections of the site. 

 The net risk score is 9 

b) Bringing forward development on this site – the main barriers to 
development will be 

• No interest in the site from occupiers (unlikely as a 
number of business occupiers in the area and the site 
very accessible) 

• Unable to obtain planning permission for use (unlikely as 
a designated employment site) 

• Very high construction costs making schemes unviable 
(possible but ground condition information is available 
and a number of other developments have taken place 
recently in the same area.) 

• Worsening economic position reducing demand and 
increasing development costs 

The net risk score is 14  

23. Recommendations 

 That Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee: 

a) Agrees to delegate to the Director of City Strategy authority to 
complete the purchase of land from Yorkshire Forward at 
Holgate Park at a purchase price not exceeding £1.5 million. 

Page 12



 

b) Approves the purchase of the land at Holgate Park as an addition 
to the capital programme budget, to be funded from borrowing. 

c) Approves the demolition of the building on the land at Holgate 
Park at £50k as an addition to the capital programme budget to 
be funded from borrowing. 

d) Approves that the revenue implications associated with the 
borrowing be funded from the treasury management budget with 
a permanent increase in 2012/13 until the asset is sold. The 
maximum increase in the treasury budget being £135k 
depending on the purchase price. 

e) Approves that the revenue implications associated with the 
demolition of the building be funded from the treasury 
management budget with a permanent increase in 2012/13 of 
£4.5k. 

Reason:   

To support corporate objectives with respect to jobs and economic 
growth and to assist in bringing forward job-generating development 
on this site of strategic significance. 

  
Chief Officers Responsible for the 
report: 
 

 
       

Roger Ranson  
Assistant Director of Economy     
and Asset Management 
City Strategy 
Report 
Approved üüüü 

 

Date 25th 
August 
2011 

 
 

    

Page 13



 

 

  

 
 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  
Louise Branford White – Technical Finance Manager 
Philip Callow – Head of Asset and Property Management 
Brian Gray – Senior Legal Assistant 
 
Wards Affected: 
 
Holgate 

 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers 
 
Annexes: 
 
Annex 1- Site Plan 
Annex 2- Confidential 

Page 14



 

Contact Details 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
Annexes: 
1 – Site Plan 
2 – Confidential – Details of acquisition terms and summary of 
independent valuers report 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



/
SCALE 1:5,000

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
City of York Council 100020818

Resources
Property Services

Originating Group:

DRAWN BY: GR DATE: 18/08/2011

G00021_1

Annex 1    Holgate Park Acquisition Site Plan

Site A
1.8 Ha

18249.2 sq m.

Site B
0.54 Ha
5481.5 sq m.

Drawing No.

Property Services

P
age 17



P
age 18

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

   

Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee 30 August 2011 
 
Report of the Director of Customer and Business Support Services 
 

Redundancy 

Summary 

1. This report advises the Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee of 
the expenditure associated with the proposed dismissal of a number 
of employees on the grounds of redundancy. 

 Background 

2. The background and detailed case surrounding each proposal are 
contained in the individual business cases to be circulated at the 
meeting as annexes to this report. 

Consultation 

3. All of the proposed redundancies have been subject to consultation 
in accordance with the Council’s statutory obligations. 

Options 

4. The Committee has the power within the Council’s procedures to 
approve discretionary enhancements to redundancy and/or pension 
payments. The Committee does not have the power to make lower 
payments. By law the decisions as to whether or not to make an 
employee redundant rests with the Chief Executive or Officers 
nominated by her. 

Analysis 

5. The analysis of each proposal can be found in the respective 
business case. 

Corporate Priorities 

6. The actions being proposed in this report are designed to support 
the Council’s corporate priority “Effective Organisation”, and are 

Agenda Item 6Page 23



 

consistent with the required outcomes of the More 4 York 
programme. 

 Implications 

7. The implications of each proposal can be found in the respective 
business case. 

Risk Management 

8. The specific risks associated with each proposal and how they can 
be mitigated are contained in each business case. In summary, the 
risks associated with the recommended option are financial, legal, 
operational and reputational. 

Recommendations 

9. Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee is asked to: 

1) Note the expenditure associated with the proposed dismissal of 
the employees on the grounds of redundancy detailed in the 
annexes. 

Reason:  In order to provide an overview of the expenditure. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Mark Bennett 
Head of HR Directorate 
Support 
Human Resources 
Ext 4518 
 

 

 

Ian Floyd 
Director of Customer and Business 
Support Services 
Report 
Approved 

X Date 19 August 
2011 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s): 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all Al
l 

X 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Page 24



 

Background Papers: 
 
None 
 
Annexes 
 
Individual Business Cases (to be circulated at the meeting) 
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Land Purchase at Holgate Park
	Holgate Park Annex 1 - Site Plan
	Confidential Annex 2-Holgate Park Staffing and Urgency Committee Report

	6 Redundancy

